
 
 

“Leading the way to excellence in building and life safety” 

Spring Quarterly Business Meeting 
April 21-22, 2022 

Enzian Inn, Leavenworth, Washington 
 

 Agenda 
 

Thursday, April 21 
 

7:30 a.m.  Coffee service and Registration – Alpine Room 

   First Timer’s Orientation – Continental Room 
    

8:00 a.m.  Business Meeting – Alpine Room 

   Pledge of Allegiance 

   Introductions 

   Welcome and Announcements 

   Agenda Approval: April 21-22, 2022 

Minutes Approval: January 27, 2022 

   Recognitions, Relocations, Memorials 

   Election of Board of Directors Nominations – July ABM 

   President’s Report 

    Executive Board Report 

   Officers’ Reports 

   Executive Director Report 
 

 

9:00 a.m.  Recess to Committee Meetings: 
 

▪ TCD – Alpine Room  

• Group 1 Code Voting Recommendations 

• Group 2 Submittals & Rochester Update 

 

▪ C & R – Bavarian Room  

• Special Plans Examiner Program 

• Initial Special Inspector Building Dept Tours 

 

10:30 a.m. 

▪ Government Relations – Alpine Room  

• 2022 Legislative Recap 

• Legislative Outreach 

• Open Forum to Discuss New Legislation 



10:30 a.m. 
▪ Education / Outreach – Bavarian Room  

• 2022 AEI Recap 

• 2022 Spokane Seminars 

• Building Official Handbook 

• Special Plans Examiner Program 

 

12:00 p.m. Luncheon – Continental Room  

    
 

1:00 p.m.  Business Meeting Reconvenes – Alpine Room 

   Guest Reports: 

    State Building Code Council 

International Code Council 

ICC Region II 

ICC Local Chapters 

IABO 

WPLBO 

OBOA 

State Agencies 

MyBuildingPermit.com 

NFPA 

WABO/SEAW 

Liaison Reports 

Others 
 

2:00 p.m.  Energy Code Task Force 

• Special Plans Examiner Program 

  

3:00 p.m.  Recess to Code Forum:   

   Code Forum – Alpine Room 

   Informal discussion on any code items 

 

5:00 p.m.  Recess until Friday 
 

5:45 p.m.  Social Event – 7th Annual Mini-Golf Tournament (weather permitting)  

    Icicle Inn           

 

7:00 p.m.  Social Event – Visconti’s Italian Restaurant 

    
 

Friday, April 22 
 

7:00 a.m.  Breakfast - Continental Room 
 

8:00 a.m.  Business Meeting Reconvenes– Alpine Room 

   Motions and Action Items 

Reports - Standing Committees: 
   Technical Code Development  

Education  
   Government Relations  
   Outreach Services  



   Certification & Registration  
Accreditation  
Emergency Management   
Finance  

 

   Announcements 

 New Business 

  WABO Chatline 

 Unfinished Business 
 

9:00 a.m.  Professional Development:  

Building Inspection Technology – Drones and Remote Video 

  Inspections - presented by Clark County 

   
   ICC Preferred Provider Course #31247 

 

 

 

12:00 p.m.  Adjourn 

 

 

 

Mark Your Calendar! 

July 28-29, 2022 - WABO Annual Business Meeting at the Kitsap Conference Center  

Bremerton, Washington 



1 

 “Leading the way to excellence in building and life safety” 
 

 
Proposed MINUTES – 2022 Winter Committee Meeting 

Zoom Conferencing 
January 27, 2022 

Call to Order  
 
The winter committee meeting of the voting representatives was called to order by President 
Kurt Aldworth on January 27, 2022 at 9:05 a.m.  

 
Roll Call  
 
The following executive board officers were present: 
  

Kurt Aldworth   - President 
 Andy Higgins   - 1st Vice President 
 Ray Cockerham  - 2nd Vice President  
 C. Ray Allshouse  - Immediate Past President 
 
The following executive board directors were present: 
 Brian Smith   - Certification & Registration 

Micah Chappell  - Technical Code Development 
 Tim Woodard   - Government Relations 

Angela Haupt   - Finance 
Todd Blevins     - Education 
James Tumelson  - Accreditation 
Tom Phillips   - Past President  
Trace Justice   - Past President  
Gary Schenk   - Past President 

 
The following executive board directors were absent: 

Stacy Criswell     - Outreach Services 
Doug Powell    - Emergency Management 
 

The following management personnel were present: 
 Tara Jenkins   - Executive Director   
 
Introductions 
 
 Registration list on file at WABO office. 
 
Agenda  
 
The President presented the proposed Agenda for the January 27, 2022, Winter Committee 
Meeting.  
 

MOTION:  It was moved and seconded that the agenda be approved.    
 The motion carried. 

WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OFFICIALS 



2 

 
Minutes 

 
The President presented the proposed Minutes for the WABO Fall Business Meeting on 
October 28-29, 2021.  
 

MOTION:  It was moved and seconded that the Minutes be approved as presented.  
The motion carried.   

 
Business meeting adjourned at 9:10 a.m. 
 
 
Legislative Overview 
 
Tim Woodard introduced Marian Dacca who provided a brief bio and legislative overview. Tim & 
Marian went over WABO’s 2022 Legislative talking points and discussed current legislation.   
Members were encouraged to identify themselves as members of WABO, state the reemerging 
themes (listed on the talking points) that our industry is seeing and inform their representative 
that you are an available resource. 
 
TCD Update 
 
Micah Chappell provided an update on Group B Proposals and upcoming ICC Public Comment 
Hearings being held March 27-April 6, 2022 in Rochester, NY.  WABO has available 
scholarships to attend.  Micah announced SBCC approved their schedule for the year and went 
into separate public comment meetings for Group 1 Code Change Proposals.   He encouraged 
members to attend to review and provides comment (or written testimony).   Micah informed the 
members some Emergency rules will be expiring and there is still more work to do on the 
Electric Vehicle proposals.  Micah encouraged members to attend WABO’s TCD meetings 
which are held virtual and stated that the SBCC lawsuit with BIAW is still ongoing and is taking a 
lot of time and money.  Micah announced an Economic Impact group will begin looking at the 
Energy Code.  Micah stated the IWUIC combined workgroup is expanding and encouraged 
member to look at Chapters 4&5 if there are any significant changes in those areas that need to 
be worked to let him know. 
 
C & R Committee Update 
 
Brian Smith provided a brief overview of the Certification and Registration program and 
informed the membership that two of his subcommittees needed code official volunteers to fill 
vacancies. 
 
Mitch Nickolds and Rob Kilmer volunteered to sit on the SIRP Advisory Board and Rob Kilmer, 
Mitch Nickolds, and Ryan Mumma volunteered to sit on the Weld Advisory Board. 
 
Open Forum 
 
Gary Schenk provided the members an update on the Good Wall Bad Wall. 
 
Micah Chappell inquired if legislative volunteers would debrief after the legislative meetings are 
held.   
 
 
Committee Meetings adjourned at 12:00 p.m. 



WABO Spring Quarterly Business Meeting
April 21-22, 2022

Attendee List
KURT  ALDWORTH CBO, ACO
CITY OF KIRKLAND

C. RAY  ALLSHOUSE AIA, CBO, ACO
CITY OF SHORELINE

JACK  APPLEGATE
NORTHWEST CODE PROFESSIONALS

PATRICK  BARRY
CITY OF TACOMA

WESLEY  BAUMGARDNER
CLARK COUNTY

R. TODD  BLEVINS  CBO
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND

ANDY  BOOTH
SNOHOMISH COUNTY

MAX  BOOTH
CLARK COUNTY

TED  BROUWER
CITY OF LYNDEN

LOWELL  BROWN
4LEAF, INC.

CLIFF  BURDICK
CITY OF WENATCHEE

SEAN  CARLSTROM CBO, MCP, CFM, ACO
CITY OF SHELTON

MICAH  CHAPPELL MBA, CBO
CITY OF SEATTLE, DCI

AL  CHRISTENSEN
CITY OF TUMWATER

RAY  COCKERHAM CBO
CITY OF PUYALLUP

SUE  COFFMAN CBO, P.E., CFM
CITY OF TACOMA

STACY  CRISWELL CBO, ACO
CITY OF MONROE

DUSTIN  CURB
ISLAND COUNTY

DANNY  DABLER
CLARK COUNTY

MARIAN  DACCA
WASHINGTON ASSN OF BUILDING OFFICIALS

SHANE  DAUGHERTY
BHC CONSULTANTS

STEPHANIE  DAY
CITY OF KIRKLAND

MARTY  GILLIS CBO
WEST COAST CODE CONSULTANTS, INC.

MELISSA  GITT
CITY OF WOODBURN

DIANE  GLENN
CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANTS OF WA, LLC

ANGELA  HAUPT CBO
CITY OF KIRKLAND

DANA  HERRON CBO
CITY OF MILTON

GARY  HONOLD
NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION

ARDEL  JALA PE
CITY OF SEATTLE, DCI

TANNER  JENKINS
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF BLDG. OFFICIALS

TARA  JENKINS
WASHINGTON ASSN OF BUILDING OFFICIALS

TROY  JENKINS
JENKINS MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC

DUANE  JONLIN
CITY OF SEATTLE, DCI

TRACE  JUSTICE CBO, ACO
SNOHOMISH COUNTY



RICK  KELLEY CBO, CFM
CITY OF SUMNER

ANDIE  LORENZ CBO, ACO
ADAMS COUNTY

RAVI  MAHAJAN
CLARK COUNTY

SCOTT  MITCHELL
CITY OF RENTON

WAYNE  MOLESWORTH
LABOR & INDUSTRIES

JAMES  MOORE
SPOKANE COUNTY BUILDING & PLANNING

JEROMY  MOORE
CITY OF PULLMAN

JIM  MUIR
CLARK COUNTY

RYAN  MUMMA CBO, ACO
CITY OF BELLEVUE

DERMOTT  MURPHY CBO, MCP, ACO
CITY OF SPOKANE

JOSEPH  NICOLAS PE
4LEAF, INC.

TONY  OSTOJA
CITY OF KENNEWICK

DOUG  POWELL CBO
CITY OF SEATAC

PETE  RAMBOW CBO, ACO
RETIRED

CHRIS  RARIG
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRIES

CINDY  REDDEKOPP
CITY OF AIRWAY HEIGHTS

GARY  SCHENK CBO, ACO
WASHINGTON ASSN OF BUILDING OFFICIALS

ROBERT  SHUEY CBO
CITY OF RENTON

BILL  SIDOR
CITY OF ABERDEEN

JONNY  SIMONS
CLARK COUNTY

JON  SIU PE, SE, ACO
JON SIU CONSULTING, LLC

BRIAN  SMITH CBO, ACO
CITY OF CAMAS

ROBERT  SNYDER
CITY OF BELLEVUE

DAVID  SPENCER CBO, ACO
ADAMS COUNTY

ANDY  STAMSCHROR
CITY OF SUNNYSIDE

KRAIG  STEVENSON CBO
ICC GOVERNMENT RELATIONS

DENNIS  STRALEY
LABOR & INDUSTRIES

QUYEN  THAI CBO
CITY OF TACOMA

DANNIE  THOMASON CBO
RETIRED

JAMES  TUMELSON CBO, MCP, ME, ACO
CITY OF EDGEWOOD

AMY  WILLIAMS
CITY OF HILLSBORO

MICHAEL  WILSON CBO
COWLITZ COUNTY

STEVEN  WILSON
CITY OF KENT

TIM  WOODARD
CITY OF  BLAINE





ThanK
You

SPoNsoRs

To OuR

PLatiNum       SpoNsoRs
 CWA Consultants, PS                              Interior Technolog®   

                               Jon Siu Consulting, LLC   

diamondDIaMoNd      SpoNsoRs
Nor¥hwest Code Professionals                          BHC Consultants                         

GoLD      SpoNsoRs
SAFEbuilt Washing¥on, LLC                        4LEAF, Inc.

silverSilVeR       SpoNsoRs
AeroWelding, LLC                    Tyler Technologies

                Clarit® Consulting Engineers, PLLC

bronzeBRonZe     SpoNsoRs
         My Building Per�it.com                    APA The Engineered  Wood Association

West Coast Code Consultants, Inc.                    IAPMO   
             Bower Associates                    Select¢on Technologies
           Simpson St¢ong-Tie         Viega, LLC
Wester� Wood Preser©ers Instit§te              National Fire Sprinkler Association
                Bitco Sost«are            Hoover Treated Wood Products
          Aminian & Associates, PLLC         Joto-Vent System USA          Aminian & Associates, PLLC         Joto-Vent System USA





[Annual_Business_Meeting]

[Register_Online_At_www.wabo.org]
For More InformaƟon Call (360)628-8669





WABO
Budget Comparison

07/01/2021 to 03/31/2022

This Period Budgeted Percentage

Member Services

Income 74,755$          74,500$             100.3%

Expense 179,956$        237,859$           75.7%

Bookstore

Income 56,379$          130,975$           43.0%

Expense 55,535$          125,241$           44.3%
.

Welder Program

Income 374,200$        517,205$           72.4%

Expense 149,062$        218,931$           68.1%

Special Inspection Program

Income 95,244$          119,975$           79.4%

Expense 101,035$        145,754$           69.3%

Education Institute

Income 131,945$        145,000$           91.0%

Expense 39,733$          134,877$           29.5%

Seminars

Income -$                    5,400$               0.0%

Expense 25$                 5,264$               0.5%

Accreditation Income 26,527$          25,995$             102.0%

Expenses 30,177$          50,857$             59.3%

Finance Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 15,802$          23,265$             67.9%

Government Relations

Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 29,194$          37,500$             77.8%

Outreach

Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 185$               4,000$               4.6%

Technical Code Development

Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 58,782$          129,500$           45.4%

Emergency Management

Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 3,081$            21,950$             14.0%

Administration

Income 14,781$          14,060$             105.1%

Expense 28,921$          45,250$             63.9%

Total

Income 773,831$        1,033,110$        74.9%

Expense 691,488$        1,180,248$        58.6%



Jul '21 - Mar 22

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Accreditation
Accredited Code Official Progra 150.00

Total Accreditation 150.00

Bookstore
Book Sales 48,229.26
Book Sales - ICC Sales 4,859.76
Shipping & Handling Income 3,290.36

Total Bookstore 56,379.38

Education Institute Income
Registrations -AEI 120,750.00
Sponsor -AEI 10,335.00
Education Institute Income - Other 0.00

Total Education Institute Income 131,085.00

Interest
Money Market 34.10

Total Interest 34.10

Investment Income
Dividends 14,746.53

Total Investment Income 14,746.53

Job Postings on Web Page 11,875.00
Membership Dues 45,150.00

Registrations
Registrations 250.00
Registrations - Other 32,667.00

Total Registrations 32,917.00

Returned Check Fee 30.00
Special Inspection

Agency Applications 3,720.00
Agency Audits 14,512.47
Fabricators

Fabricator Inital Application 2,900.00
Fabricator Renewals 2,200.00
Fabricators - Other 1,648.06

Total Fabricators 6,748.06

Key Personnel 11,060.00
Reciprocal Renewals 240.00
Special Inspectors 58,963.49
Special Inspection - Other 0.00

Total Special Inspection 95,244.02

Sponsors Income 12,050.00
Welder Certification

Weld Agency Apps & Renewals 9,023.09
Weld Agency Audit 3,325.00
Weld Applications and Renewals 356,567.00

WABO - Summary
Profit & Loss

July 2021 through March 2022

Page 1



Jul '21 - Mar 22

Weld Examiner Apps & Renewals 4,780.00
Weld Test Records 475.00

Total Welder Certification 374,170.09

Total Income 773,831.12

Gross Profit 773,831.12

Expense
Awards 564.02
B&O Taxes 7,709.46
Bank Charges 165.90
Bookstore Purch - COGS 36,701.13

Computer Expenses
Computer Software 136.84
Web Page Fees 4,459.14
Computer Expenses - Other 1,681.29

Total Computer Expenses 6,277.27

Credit Card Fees 15,580.44
Dues & Fees

Membership Fees 450.00
Registration Fees 250.00

Total Dues & Fees 700.00

Executive Board
Donations/ Other Agency Support 5,000.00

Meetings 6,952.67
Travel 11,224.27

Total Executive Board 23,176.94

Insurance/Licenses 2,203.00
Legal 852.50
Lobbyist 27,000.00
Management Fees 379,497.81

Marketing/ Advertising
Scholarships 18,932.02

Total Marketing/ Advertising 18,932.02

Meals 400.03
Meeting Expenses

Quarterly Meeting Expenses
Meeting Scholarships 5,877.20
Member Promotions 2,931.67
Social Events 1,387.47
Quarterly Meeting Expenses - Ot... 13,887.39

Total Quarterly Meeting Expenses 24,083.73

Meeting Expenses - Other 1,328.14

Total Meeting Expenses 25,411.87

Postage and Shipping Expense
Postage and Shipping Other NGO -189.00

WABO - Summary
Profit & Loss

July 2021 through March 2022

Page 2



Jul '21 - Mar 22

Postage and Shipping Expense - O... 16,986.95

Total Postage and Shipping Expense 16,797.95

Printing
Amendment Printing 484.55
Printing - Other 5,604.98

Total Printing 6,089.53

Publication Expense 246.44
Speaker/Presenters 20,874.50
Supplies

Amendment Paper 141.16
Supplies - Other 9,195.62

Total Supplies 9,336.78

Tech Consultant Services
Consultant Travel Fee & Expense 14,581.60
Fabricator Consultant 665.00
SIRP Consultant 20,535.00
Technical Code Consultant 47,829.01
Welder Consultant 3,927.50

Total Tech Consultant Services 87,538.11

Telephone and Internet 2,750.22
Travel Expense 2,681.92

Total Expense 691,487.84

Net Ordinary Income 82,343.28

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Unrealized Gain/Loss -54,713.91

Total Other Income -54,713.91

Net Other Income -54,713.91

Net Income 27,629.37

WABO - Summary
Profit & Loss

July 2021 through March 2022

Page 3





Annual Awards 

JURISDICTIONAL OUTREACH AWARD 

Purpose: The Jurisdictional Outreach Award is to 
salute jurisdictions that have made an ex­
ceptional effort to communicate with their 
communities and customers. This annual 
award recognizes a jurisdiction that dem­
onstrates a commitment to its customers 
through the successful implementation of a 
program designed to expand the awareness 
of building codes and safety in the commu­
nity. 

Who: Any department or division of a local govern­
ment in Washington that has the authority 
and responsibility for administration and 
enforcement of the building codes is eligible 
to receive the award. Nominations may in­
clude more than one jurisdiction to recognize 
mutual efforts. 

Award: A plaque honoring the recipient. A certificate 
is presented to the jurisdiction's chief execu­
tive officer, administrator, or elected official 
and to the ICC Chapter president. 

OUTSTANDING EDUCATIONAL ACHIEVEMENT 

Purpose: The Outstanding Educational Achievement 
Award is to honor ICC Chapters and the 
members that are leaders in educating 
building code administration and enforce­
ment professionals in standards of pro­
fessionalism. This award recognizes an 
ICC Chapter or Chapter member that has 
demonstrated outstanding commitment, 
effort, and achievement in promoting high 
standards of professionalism for individuals 
involved in building code administration and 
enforcement in Washington. 

Who: All ICC Chapters and Chapter members in 
the state of Washington. 

Award: A plaque honoring the recipient 

CoDE OFFICIAL OF THE YEAR 

Purpose: TheWABO Code Official of the Year Award 
is to recognize individuals who have made an 
outstanding contribution to the Washington 
Association of Building Officials and to build­
ing officials throughout Washington. Criteria 
for the award are contribution to WABO, 
promotion of WABO ideals, philosophy, and 
goals, and contribution to building safety on 
a statewide level. 

Who: Must be a member of WABO. 

Award: A plaque honoring the recipient 

ASSOCIATE MEMBER OF THE YEAR 

Purpose: The WABO Associate of the Year is to recog­

Who: 

Award: 

nize an Associate Member who has made an 
outstanding contribution to the Washington 
Association of Building Officials and to build­
ing officials throughout Washington. The cri­
teria for the award are contribution to WABO, 
promotion of WABO ideals, philosophy, and 
goals, and contribution to building safety on 
a statewide level. 

Must be an Associate Member ofWABO.          

A plaque honoring the recipient. 

Nomination Procedures: 

The official nomination form for all awards must be completed 
and returned to the WABO office thirty days prior to the ABM. 
Awards will be announced at the WABO Annual Awards Ban­
quet during the Annual Business Meeting. Nominations will 
be screened by the Nominations Committee and voted on by 
the Executive Board. All award winners will be featured in an 
article of The WABO News.





 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

⬧ 

INTRODUCTION  1 

WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 2 

HISTORY OF BUILDING OFFICIALS AND 
CODE 

2 

DUTIES OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL 3 

LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BUILDING 
OFFICIAL 

4 

WHERE IS THE BUILDING OFFICIAL'S PLACE 
IN THE JURISDICTIONS’S ORGANIZATION? 

6 

QUALITIES OF A GOOD BUILDING OFFICIAL 7 

WHEN DO YOU NEED A BUILDING OFFICIAL 8 

WHAT ARE THE CHALLENGES OF THE 
BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

10 

FUTURE OF BUILDING OFFICIALS 12 

WHAT IS WABO?  14 

WABO'S LEGISLATIVE POSITIONS  15 

   



 

 

1 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

INTRODUCTION  

 
Washington Association of Building Officials 
Supported by WABO’s Mission Statement “Leading the way to excellence in building and life 
safety,” WABO’s role is to promote excellence in the industry through education and creating a 
collaborative culture.  We participate in conversations with other stakeholders in the construction 
industry, and support the membership by providing professional development to help them meet the 
challenges of our changing industry 
 
 

About the Building Officials Handbook 
WABO members created this guide to provide Building Officials, Plans Examiners, Building 
Inspectors, Permit Technicians, and other city staff an overview of the duties and 
responsibilities. We value our role and responsibility to help provide a safe built community in 
which Washingtonians live, work and play.  The team that collaborated to create this document 
represents committed to supporting the development of safe structures that serve the 
communities and investments for the communities we serve.  
  The construction industry is evolving as each sector of the trades struggles with replacing and 
training the next generation of professionals.  WABO leaders recognize the challenge as a call to 
collectively share wisdom while participating in conversations around this importantly vital 
reference.   An idea shared with the membership was embraced by the chairperson of the 
Outreach Committee, Stacy Criswell.  With Stacy’s embrace of the potential value to the 
membership and with the support of others to his realize his vision, this reference tool was 
created. 

 
Future of the Building Official Handbook 
WABO envisions this guide as a living document to evolve proving a tool for Washington 
Building Code professionals throughout the State of Washington.     Please get involved with 
WABO, and let’s continue to share the vision by including your ideas and your knowledge to 
ensure the mission of WABO is continued and thrives with the next generation of Building Code 
Officials.  

  



   
 

 

2 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

Chapter 1: What Is A Building Official? 

The Building Official is the lead person when it comes to building, plumbing and mechanical 
permits. Jurisdiction size, location, political make up, and coverage area greatly alter the roles 
and responsibilities of the Building Official. 
 
A Building Official for a smaller jurisdiction may be the only person to ensure things are 
permitted, built, and maintained in a safe manner. However, a larger jurisdiction may have 
dedicated staff to handle permit intake, plans examining, code interpretation and inspections, 
making the Building Official’s role managerial. 
 
In either jurisdiction, the Building Official is the lead person responsible for enforcing the state 
adopted building codes. This includes providing interpretations, setting policies, updating 
codes, handling questions or complaints from the public and working with different 
departments ensuring projects meet all requirements (not just building) prior to occupancy. 
 

Chapter 2: History of Building Officials and Codes  

Historically, the first known written building code was enacted by King Hammurabi of Babylon 

in 1758 B.C. Harsh penalties of this code, written in stone, established that people who 

designed and built for others were to be held accountable for the results of their work. 

Although this code provided no direction on how to build, it simply stated, “If a builder has built 

a house for a man and his work is not strong, and if the house he has built falls in and kills the 

householder, that builder shall be slain.” Such penalties surely kept most builders honest 

without licensing, detailed codes, permits or Building Officials.  

As a result of the great fires in London in 1666 and Chicago in 1871, building codes began to 

address risks any given building posed to neighboring buildings and the public in general. 

Hazards associated with densely developed cities including tall buildings, gave rise to 

regulations for the installation of protected common walls between buildings and outlawed 

dangerous practices such as wooden chimneys. Life and death problems experienced over time 

in existing buildings spawned codes for light and ventilation, fire escapes, water supply, toilets 

and sanitary drains, stairs and railings, all typically enforced by local Building Officials. 

A United States insurance group, the National Board of Fire Underwriters, created the National 

Building Code in 1905 aimed to minimize risks to property and building occupants. The 

existence of this code ultimately led to the formation of three regional organizations of Building 

Officials, founded in 1915, 1922 and 1940 respectively, each with its own building code. In 

1994, these organizations and their codes were consolidated into the International Code 

Council (ICC), a nonprofit organization dedicated to developing a single set of comprehensive 

and coordinated national model construction codes, and the first set of “I-Codes” was 

published in 2000.   



   
 

 

3 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

Even though the I-Codes are becoming the most widely adopted building codes across the United 
States, some jurisdictions still enforce older codes, have their own unique codes, or have no code 
enforcement at all. In contrast, the State of Washington adopted and amended the Uniform 
Building Code as a Statewide building code for many years before transitioning to the model I-
Codes as the primary codes in 2004.  As part of this legislated transition, Washington State 
retained the Uniform Plumbing Code as an exception.  As Washington is a “home rule” state, 
local jurisdictions are charged with the enforcement of these codes by their designated Building 
Official and have the authority to amend the State Building Code with some limitations.  Typically, 
your local Building Official is also tasked with managing the adoption of local code amendments 
for and by local government elected officials. 

 

Chapter 3: Duties of the Building Official 

The International Code Council (ICC) defines the Building Official as: 
“The officer or other designated authority charged with administration and enforcement of this 
code or a duly authorized representative.” 
 
The Building Official is charged with the interpretation and application of the legally adopted 
building codes and regulations within their jurisdiction. Codes typically include building, 
plumbing, mechanical, energy conservation, and electrical systems*.1 
 
The Building Official’s primary duties include overseeing the day-to-day operations of the 
building department from where, the processing of permit applications, plan reviews, and 
building inspections are coordinated and conducted. Some Building Officials also conduct plan 
review or inspections depending on staffing levels.  
 
Additionally, the Building Official’s duties include creating supporting documentation and 
supplemental code requirements to better suit the conditions of their jurisdiction. This can vary 
from preparing departmental operating policies and writing code interpretations to developing 
code amendments for adoption by the jurisdiction’s elected officials.  
 
The Building Official drafts ordinances for the updating and adoption of the model building 
codes, which occurs on a 3-year cycle in accordance with the laws of Washington state. 
Developing ordinances for the adoption of the local amendments and/or state building codes 
typically requires the Building Official to present their proposals at public hearings for the City 
or County Council and members of the public before those codes may can be adopted. 
 

 
1 *City and town municipal jurisdictions may opt to preform electrical inspections in accordance with  Washington State 

Department of Labor & Industries regulate electrical installations in RCW 19.28.010. 

 

https://lni.wa.gov/licensing-permits/electrical/laws-rules-policies
https://lni.wa.gov/licensing-permits/electrical/laws-rules-policies


   
 

 

4 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

Many of the life-safety requirements of building and fire codes overlap with one another, 
requiring the Building Official to collaborate with the Fire Code Official to coordinate oversight 
and approvals of new and existing building construction.  It is important that the Building 
Official coordinate with the Fire Code Official to maintain a successful working relationship.  
Building Officials participate in local outreach and educational programs often in partnership 
with other agencies or private business. The goal of these programs is to increase awareness of 
the importance of building and fire codes, educate the public on permit requirements for 
construction or alterations, and to further highlight services that building departments provide. 
This outreach is typically done at local events, schools, job fairs, and through online programs 
within their jurisdiction. 
 
These are just a few of the primary duties that most Building Officials perform daily and all with 
the same objective; To ensure the safety and enjoyment of homes, buildings, businesses, 
recreational facilities, and much more.  
 

Chapter 4: Legal Responsibilities of the Building Official  

Laws and Regulations   
The state of Washington is a Home Rule form of government, granting local jurisdictions 
authority for building code enforcement.  The Building Official must abide by the laws and 
regulations enacted by Legislature or signed by the Governor, which include the RCWs and WAC 
codes.   The Revised Code of Washington (RCW) is the compilation of all permanent laws now in 
force.  It is a collection of Session Laws (enacted by the Legislature, and signed by the Governor, 
or enacted via the initiative process), arranged by topic, with amendments added and repealed 
laws removed.  The Washington Administrative Code (WAC) codifies the regulations from the 
RCWs and arranges them by subject or agency.  The State of Washington develops a state 
building code and local jurisdictions must adopt and enforce the code but are allowed to adopt 
local provisions provided they are not less restrictive than the state code.   
 
Ethics, Open government, and Fairness for the Building Official 
As an officer enforcing the laws of the state, the Building Official must show equal treatment 
and fairness in performance of their duties.  Their decisions must always be ethical without 
granting any special privileges, accepting gifts/rewards, or threatening to withhold services for 
their performance of duties.  An obligation of the Building Official is recusal or disclosure 
related to decisions on matters which they may have a financial interest.  This could apply to 
home ownership, business interests, and local associations.   Although there is open 
government and all documents are subject to public disclosure, the Building Official must not 
disclose confidential information in their capacity or threaten to disclose such information.   

 
Code Administration and Enforcement 
The Building Official is responsible for many tasks related to a building permit and the proper 
performance of these tasks is essential for when there are legal implications from investigations 
and enforcement of code violations.   Specifically, the tasks are: 



   
 

 

5 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

• Permit Application – It is important to define the specific requirements of a permit 
application, including whether plans, structural calculations, etc. are required.  The 
Building Official should also perform screening to reject an application if it does not 
meet the requirements of the application.   

• Plans Examination – This is an important function of the Building Official.  To 
perform the function of plan review, staff must be a qualified in the area, or contract 
for a qualified firm.  It is essential that the Building Official do a quality plan review 
and require revisions if the construction documents do not conform to the building 
code requirements.   

• Plans Examination – When it is determined that plan review is required based on the 
scope of work, a qualified plan reviewer will go through the plans to ensure they 
meet Federal, State and local requirements. This process may take several attempts. 

• Permit Issuance – The issuance of a permit is an important step in the enforcement 
and administration of the building codes.  Owner information and contractor 
licensure numbers should be required for permit issuance.  Once a permit is granted 
and construction has begun on a building site, it becomes difficult to revoke the 
issued permit, even if there is a mistake on the permit.  A builder may establish legal 
rights to build once the permit has been issued. Revocation of a permit should rarely 
be considered when  all other efforts to address the issue have been exhausted..   

• Inspection – Inspections are the most important part of the Building Officials duties. 
Inspections are the connection to the permit issuance, plan review, code compliance 
and construction projects.  Once construction starts on a building, the building code 
requires that it be inspected and approved by the Building Official.  The construction 
or work shall remain accessible and exposed for inspection purposes until approved.  
Detailed inspection records are an essential part of the records that must be 
documented during inspections and kept in the permit record.  Building inspector 
work under the authority of the Building Official, this is considered a ministerial act; 
in other words, it is performed under the authority, policies, and procedures of a 
supervisor, and it does not involve discretion. 

• Handling Complaints – Handling complaints are a necessary function of the Building 
Official.  It is important to establish a standard procedure for handling complaints, 
and document as much information as possible, as the complaint may end up with 
legal action if the owner does not resolve the complaint. 

• Enforcement of Violations – Once a violation has been found, some action must be 
taken to enforce the code.  Once the construction has been completed, prosecution 
of the city courts becomes the final method of enforcement.  Notice of violation is 
the first step in the process and must include name of person/entity being charged, 
section number and name of violation(s), description of the violation, date/time of 
the offense, and signature of the inspector.  Injunctive relief such as temporary 
restraining order, temporary injunction, or permanent injunction may be required if 



   
 

 

6 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

legal remedies are required to prevent significant harm to the public before the 
violation could be remedied by the owner. 

 
 

Ministerial vs. Discretionary Duties 
Decisions made by the building official are either ministerial or discretionary acts.  A ministerial 
act is a decision performed in a prescribed manner and in obedience to a legal authority, 
without regard to one’s own judgment or discretion.  Decisions made by the Building Official 
that follow the prescriptive requirements in the building codes are considered ministerial acts.  
Discretionary acts are decisions where judgment or deliberation is required when Building 
Official approves or disapproves a particular activity.  This is different from ministerial 
functions, in which the Building Official merely has to determine whether there has been 
conformity with applicable statutes, ordinances, or regulations.  The distinction between 
ministerial acts and discretionary acts is often important to determine whether a public official 
is shielded by qualified immunity.  Generally, discretionary acts are immune from liability, while 
ministerial acts are not. 
 
Expert Witness Testimony  
The Building Official may be required to service as a witness at some point in either their official 
capacity as a Building Official or as an expert witness. The jurisdictional attorney will help to 
prepare the Building Official as a witness for trial.   
 
As a “Fact Witness”, they will be asked to describe the circumstances that they have observed 
firsthand.  Generally, cases that involve the Building Official will either be those that are 
brought to enforce a particular code section or those brought as a defense to actions for 
damages against the Building Official.  In either case, the fact witness has been called in order 
to relate to the judge and/or jury the substance of what the Building Official observed in the 
course of enforcing the code.  In the majority of enforcement actions, the Building Official 
initiates the legal action. 
 
The Building Official may also be called as an expert witness.  An expert witness is different 
from a fact witness, and the Building Official testifying as a fact witness may not have any 
connection with the facts of the case until requested to review and comment on them.  Instead, 
they have some high level of expertise, knowledge or specialized training in a particular field 
beyond that held by an ordinary person.   
 

Chapter 5: Where is the Building Official’s place in the jurisdiction’s 
organization? 

The Building Official’s role is a dynamic one and is easily adapted to most jurisdictional and 
county structures. Sometimes the jurisdiction’s or county’s code or charter dictates where the 
Building Official resides within an organization.  Most of the time however, the placement of 
the Building Official within an organization is a matter of the jurisdiction’s best judgement in 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/wex/qualified_immunity


   
 

 

7 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

response to the character of the community it serves.  Some departments are strictly dedicated 
to building or construction.  In other places, the Building Official and supporting staff have been 
organized in the same department with Planning staff, Engineering or Code Enforcement. In 
many smaller jurisdictions, it is common for the Building Official to have multiple roles including 
planner, city engineer and code enforcement officer.  
 
The Building Official and supporting staff have natural synergistic relationships with other staff 
and departments.  Most departments have a vested interest in fire and life safety in the built 
environment for its citizens and visitors.  Use issues naturally require coordination with 
Planning Departments regarding the type of occupancy.  Fire flow, access, right-of-way, 
sanitation, water supply and erosion and sediment control issues require coordination with 
Public Works/Engineering and Fire Departments.  Unpermitted construction, dangerous 
buildings and nuisances often require the collaboration with Code Enforcement staff, Fire 
Department, Police and Legal staff.   
 

Chapter 6: Qualities of a Good Building Official 

Robert E O’Bannon author of “Building Department Administration” revised version in 1989, 
dedicated an entire chapter to the Building Official covering at length the role, duties, 
functions, and responsibilities of the Building Official. He also outlines some qualities and skills 
required to function effectively in this role. The following are key characteristics of an effective 
and responsible Building Official. 
  

• Circumspection – Ability to consider all sides and consequences. 

• Objectivity – Considering the facts without preconceived judgment or opinion. 

• Patience - Demonstrating forbearance over provocation. 

• Veracity – Sticking to the truth. 

• Empathy – Understanding the other side when your position hurts/harms them. 

• Integrity – Doing what is right, even if no one is watching. 

• Candor – Being forthright, telling it like it is. 
 
No person will likely possess all the above traits at the beginning of their tenure as a building 
official, nor are they comprehensive. Many need to be developed over time. Equally important 
as the above traits are “knowing one’s own shortcomings”. If a Building Official is lacking in 
areas, it is important for them to recognize where they are lacking and to desire to develop and 
expand those abilities in which they are deficient.  
 
Administrative and managerial skills are vital as department size increases. The “many hats” 
scenario is very real when it comes to department management and administration. Planning, 
organizing, supervision, coordination, and reporting are primary functions for the Building 
Official. Although the duties of building department administrator are similar to other 
jurisdiction’s departments, the responsibilities and knowledge required are very different. The 
effective administration and enforcement of the jurisdiction’s building, and life safety codes 
require a constant effort of study, research, training, code development, and teaching. All this is 



   
 

 

8 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

accomplished while the Building Official is conducting or managing plan reviews and 
inspections. The Building Official must be a highly motivated individual and possess/acquire the 
skills and aptitude to function independently within their department especially when it comes 
to the technical side of code administration.  
 
The following are additional personal attributes that are beneficial for a Building Official to 
possess. 

• Industrious – Personal energy, drive, solid work habits and productive. 

• Good Judgment – Identify problems when they do exist, foresee upcoming problems, 
and head them off, be ready with solutions and control any impulsiveness. Good 
judgment also involves knowing when to be flexible, when to hold the line. 

• Even Temperament – maintain a calm demeanor when under pressure (one of the 
toughest for a lot of people). 

• Ability to communicate – express yourself and ideas verbally and in written format in a 
clear, concise and a persuasive manner 

Finally…. A Building Official should always look and act professional. 

 
Chapter 7: When do you need a Building Official? 

For the purposes of this chapter, the Building Official is described not as an individual but as a 
team of specialists, including the building code official, permit technicians, plan reviewers, 
inspectors and in some cases code compliance enforcement officers. All these personnel, who 
are managed by the Building Official, are acting with the authority of the building official.   
 
Construction and Building Inspectors: Occupational Outlook Handbook:  U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics (bls.gov) 
 
When the public needs a building official. 
The community needs the Building Official to administer the building codes in the most efficient 
and strategic manner possible cooperating with contractors, design professionals and other 
authorities within the jurisdiction to protect the overall community.  You need the Building 
Official to partner with all and be aligned to none.   
 
When you need a permit.  
The Building Official administers the process of a building permit.  Building permits are an 
integral part of the construction process.  The obligation of the Building Official is to review 
plans for code compliance, inspect the projects for compliance with the construction 
documents and monitor the stages of construction at key points for code compliance.   
  

https://www.bls.gov/ooh/construction-and-extraction/construction-and-building-inspectors.htm#tab-2
https://www.bls.gov/ooh/construction-and-extraction/construction-and-building-inspectors.htm#tab-2


   
 

 

9 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

When you didn’t get a permit.   
Building officials are tasked with the enforcement of situations created by property owners 
who proceed with work without the minimum pre-emptive review, issuance, and inspections 
for projects, by skipping the permit process.  Building Officials have an obligation to enforce the 
building code. The obligation for code compliance is with the building owner and technical 
professionals hired to design, supply, and construct buildings and structures.  It is imperative 
that Building Officials are able to enforce codes within the community. 
 
What you may not have thought of when needing a Building Official.  
When you think of Building Officials, do you think beyond the codes? 
Building officials are the front line of key issues related to the built environment, working to set 
a level playing field for all.  The minimum construction standards, mechanical systems, energy 
conservation, and ventilation air quality code all contribute to the health, welfare, and 
investment within the community.   
The science and impact of indoor air quality is a fundamental and essential need in our built 
environment.  Equating the minimum standards of indoor air quality to improvement in public 
health is a foundation of these prescriptive code standards.  Inspection of the adequate 
structural support for housing, business, community centers and the rest of the built 
environment is an essential need of the community to be provided both a minimum standard of 
safety but also preservation of the investment. The Building Official is needed to work as a 
partner with the community to ensure the fundamental needs of the community are met by 
enforcing the minimum code standards.   
 
What you may not know when needing a Building Official. 
The community needs the building official to work preemptively in all aspects of public life 
safety elements.  While many of those in community service such as police and fire spend most 
of the time working reactively to the needs of the community, most of the Building Official’s 
work is preemptive.  
 
The Building Official also responds to community disasters, hazards, and building construction 
conditions created by the lack of maintenance, disrepair and/or unsafe occupancy.  The 
Building Official is obligated to act to secure the public safety, notify the property owner, and 
require restoration to applicable codes.  The Building Official is required to keep records of 
permits and provide them as stated by the building codes and state laws for public review.    
 
In thinking of permits, often not considered is the autonomy that the Building Official brings to 
the project construction process. The Building Official is free from contracts, financial incentive, 
financial risk; their only duty is to community.  The construction industry has many well 
indented competent contractors and design professionals; the industry also has 
contractors/design professionals that provide substandard or fraudulent work that is mitigated 
by the Building Official through the permitting process.  
  



   
 

 

10 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

When you don’t need a Building Official.  
Most of the time Building Officials, permit technicians and inspectors work in unison with other 
jurisdiction’s employees.  Citizens often aren’t aware of the distinction between the Building 
Official, engineering, and planning.  Management of storm water is likely not a Building Official 
task unless a structural hazard is created.  Building Officials must avoid involvement in civil 
disputes including property lines and similar non-building code issues.    Work that does not 
require permits is generally not under the authority of the building official unless a public safety 
danger is created.  Another example is workmanship.  Building Officials need to avoid being 
involved in workmanship issues unless the issue is code related.  An example of workmanship 
issues is concrete finishing that may look bad but does not create a code compliance issue.   
 
When jurisdiction’s staff needs a Building Official.  
The Building Official is a resource to staff, providing the tone and experience to direct and 
inspire staff to both meet the customer services standards and the code enforcement duties.  
All relevant tasks completed by the Building Official rest in the visual inspection of the work in 
progress with a foundation in plan review. The support of staff is needed to provide thorough 
and responsive services.  Staff need the support of the Building Official to navigate and evolve 
along with the cultural and workplace changes some of which are related to social 
environments.   
 

Chapter 8: What are the Challenges of the Building Official? 

Time Management.   
Building Officials deal with many deadlines, imposed by Department Heads to City Council or 
Board of County Commissioners.  Producing reports and final documents for meetings are a 
priority. 
 
Staff have questions, other managers need the Building Official’s input and there are always 
challenging inspections to follow-up on. The use of electronic calendars with meeting reminders 
is essential in the managing of the Building Official’s time.  
 
Defusing Problems with the Public 
Many types of issues may arise from the public that need resolution by the Building Official.   
Enforcing the codes creates opportunities requiring the Building Official to make administrative 
determinations.   Common issues relate to substantiating a correction Notice, evaluating permit 
status for a permit has expired without a Final Inspection, an angry Contractor is at the counter 
regarding a permit issuance delay, or someone is threatening a lawsuit about a structural 
deficiency. 
 
Public Relations:  Board, Council, or Newspaper 
Whether in a Wildland-Urban Interface zone and where wildfires could threaten structures in 
the jurisdiction, or that the code has raised the earthquake hazard to a more hazardous 
designation, there are always code issues that the public should be made aware of.   



   
 

 

11 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

• What is the Building Department doing because of these code changes, or will permit 
submittals be increasing?   

• What is being done to get ahead of these events?   

• What preparation is being done for any changes, and are handouts being created, or 
websites being updated to keep people abreast? 

• Does a presentation need to be made to the Advisory Board, or the 
Council/Commissioners to convey upcoming changes?  

• Can the budget handle the increased demand for Plan Reviewers? 

• Has staff been made aware, and has everyone discussed expectations? 

 
Fairness and Clarity 
Examples of problems where solutions need to be documented are: 

• A contractor has argued that they were charged Incorrect Permit Fees.   

• An Architect has plans that were not approved by staff, because their engineering was 
delayed, and the new Code went into effect with their plans referencing the previous 
code edition (permit submittals were incomplete).   

• A contractor was in a hurry and poured their concrete without their Building Permit 
Issued being issued, but their Engineer of Record did see the rebar and witnessed the 
pour.  

 
Staff needs to understand the decision-making process, to feel supported and understand 
policies resulting from the Building Official’s decision. Applicants need to know they are being 
treated fairly, too--that their concerns have been listened to, even if they don't get the answer 
they wanted.  Goes back to the level playing field, and balancing consistency with flexibility. 
 
Documenting, Reprimands and Personnel Issues 
Personnel issues are time consuming and important issues that a manager must address.    The 
records are cumbersome, there can be an emotional nightmare ahead for the employee and 
their family.  Personnel issues will happen during a Building Official’s career. All personnel 
issues can be unpleasant, difficult, and ugly. The Building Official needs to know the policy and 
laws that affect personnel and Union contracts.   
 
Building Department staff are public employees, in the field and in the office.  When it comes to 
addressing the use vulgar language, inappropriate jokes, and other offensive behaviors the 
Building Official need to be proactive in addressing these issues.  Reviewing City policy would be 
a good best practice.  
 
Unions, bargaining unit members in the office, and after-hour meetings on Cost-of-Living 
adjustments, may all affect morale the next day.  A respected Building Official will ask how 
things went and will leave on a positive note, changing the subject if necessary. 



   
 

 

12 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

Human Resources Policies 
There may be a binder, or an online version of the HR policy.  Effort in proactively seeking 
current versions of policy may be required.  Bargaining unit/Union contracts may conflict with 
some HR policies, so it is important to review both.  
 
Family Medical Leave Act will be listed in the HR rules, but the Union contract, or yet another 
version at the Federal level may supersede all of the local regulations.  Medical Leave, 
Maternity Leave, Drug (Substance) Use and others are protected, and there may be forms to 
sign.  It will be important to network with HR staff to coordinate these differences.  
  
Networking 
A Building Official should develop and foster relationships with Department Heads.  If for 
example the Fire Department relationship may have been strained, the Building Official should 
reach out to the Fire Chief in a face-to-face meeting in their office.  Make the effort to hear 
their concerns.  Strive to work to mend fences with them, or keep the same people in place if 
everything is running smoothly.  

o How are the day-to-day operations working? 
o Is the communication adequate?  
o Do we need additional coordination?  

 
Budget Preparation and Revenue Estimates 
The Building Official oversees their department’s budget projecting estimates for revenue and 
finalizing all expenses. Other department heads should be consulted to find out how they 
successfully made requests for additional positions.   
 
Politics and Outside Pressures 
Elected officials all answer to the public, so inquiries about permit progress, or rumors of a 
future Home Depot expansion, are all a part of being transparent.  It isn't because they are a 
Democrat or a Republican, it is because they are getting emails or phone calls, and they are 
simply wanting answers.  A Building Official should be clear and concise in conveying 
information in these scenarios. 

 
Chapter 9: The Future of Building Officials  

The Building Official plays a vital role in the safety of our communities by enforcing the 
provisions of the latest adopted National, State, and local codes. These codes are constantly 
being updated or revised based on new information that comes in from users of the codes. 
Building Officials from around the country vote on proposed changes. The Building Official must 
quickly get up to speed with new requirements and be adaptable to changing technology in the 
permitting, plan review and inspection environment.    
 
Why Codes Change 
Changing codes can sometimes be daunting to the building community. For designers, they may 
need to update many design details and programs used for calculations. Builders may need to 



   
 

 

13 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

change the techniques and/or materials they use to build and there may be increased costs that 
affect profitability.  Nonetheless, Building Officials are required by State law to enforce the new 
provisions of the code.   
 
Changes to the code can occur for a variety of reasons, from deaths attributable to a building 
condition, a need to adapt to changing environment, more detailed data to support a change, 
or perhaps to reverse a previous code change that caused unintended consequences. An 
example of changes to the code to prevent future deaths due to a building condition allowed in 
the code is the tragedy of the Station nightclub fire in Rhode Island that resulted in the death of 
100 people and injuring more than 200. Overcrowding in a night club music event caused the 
accidental deaths due to inadequate fire safety measures for the occupant load. This event 
prompted specific code language to address nightclubs (A-2 occupancy) to be protected with 
automatic sprinkler systems. Modern building codes are also changing to allow new and 
innovative building materials and technology such as mass timber construction, recycled 
materials, or technology that reduces the carbon footprint.  This is in response to both 
depletion of natural resources, changing climate conditions, and the need to be more 
sustainable in the future.   
 
The Building Official’s Other Players 
In the built environment, there are other officials and departments that the Building Official 
must work with.  This may include the local Fire Marshal, Planning Department, Public Works, 
Health Department, Electrical, Natural Gas, local clean air agency, and telecommunications 
departments.  When a permit application has been submitted for review to their local 
jurisdiction these departments typically work concurrently as they perform their reviews of the 
submitted construction documents. The goal of the review process is to verifying substantial 

compliance code compliance which includes the safest built environment possible, accessible 
routes for pedestrians, energy resilient features are in place, fire and life safety measures are in 
place, carefully planned streets and sidewalks for the community to enjoy, and environmentally 
friendly community planning.   
 
The future Building Official will likely interact other departments in the permitting and plan 
review process, including those looking at alternative energy options like wind and solar, 
sustainable construction like LEED or Built Right, etc., or other future technologies and 
materials that haven’t yet been invented. In addition, with the depletion of natural resources, 
there are new materials and techniques for building that the Building Official will encounter. 
The Building Official will need to learn about the new technologies and, where necessary, bring 
in additional resources and expertise to ensure that the new methods and materials are 
constructed in conformance with the new code requirements.   
 
Adapting to New Technologies for Permitting and Plan Review 
In the wake of the Covid-19 pandemic shutdown, many jurisdictions were forced to convert 
permitting operations online to still serve the needs of the public. For jurisdictions that were 
previously a paper-based in-person operation, they had to quickly find a way to allow electronic 
submittals and move office staff into a home-based operation. This was an easy transition for 



   
 

 

14 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

the jurisdictions that had already converted to a paperless permit process, but more difficult for 
the smaller jurisdictions that were still using paper. Electronic plan review and paperless 
permitting processes greatly benefited both the applicants and jurisdictions despite the 
difficulty some may have had quickly adapting to the completely paperless process. For 
instance, with an electronic submittal, jurisdictions can use plan review software that allow all 
Departments to review and see the mark ups from other Departments in real time, thus 
speeding up the review process compared to a tandem paper-based routing system. Electronic 
submittals also allow review staff to work in the office or remotely if circumstances require. 
This makes the departmental review a much quicker process by allowing the applicants to be 
working on their projects much sooner, and the review comments (or redline comments) are 
clearly typewritten (this makes it much easier to read and follow for the people conducting the 
work in the field). 
 
Adapting to New Inspection Processes and Technologies  
The Covid-19 pandemic also impacted how jurisdictions inspect projects. When it was unsafe 
for inspectors to visit jobsites, regulating agencies were required to reinvent their inspection 
processes. For simple inspections or re-inspections, some jurisdictions allowed submittal of a 
photo or photos for inspection review. One of the most widely accepted and implemented form 
of inspection used during the pandemic was performing virtual inspection. Inspectors can use 
their computer or smartphone to perform a video inspection with the applicant (or applicant’s 
representative), thereby allowing the inspector on a video call to verbally direct the applicant 
(who is on-site) to the areas of interest. As requested by the inspector, the applicant can hold 
up a tape measure to clearly indicate the measurement of sensitive installations. 
 
Challenges to the future of the Building Official 
With so many advances in technology, our built environment may change drastically in the 
future, and the Building Official will need to quickly adapt.  With advancements in robotics and 
related fields, there may be different considerations with regards to building occupants and 
ability to egress a building. Future climate change may also significantly affect the way we 
construct our buildings and how natural resources like water, natural gas, and building 
materials are allowed to be used. Some change will be slow and gradual, but other changes will 
be rapid, and the Building Official must quickly get up to speed and adapt the jurisdictions 
response to those changes. It is important for the Building Official to be involved in 
organizations that promote updates to the building codes and provide support like technical 
literature and training to support the smooth transition to the new requirements.  The Building 
Official represents an important role in the future of the building codes and should be at the 
forefront of promoting a building department that not only adapts to but celebrates a changing 
future. 
 

Chapter 10: What is WABO? 
 
Mission Statement: Leading the way to excellence in building and life safety. 
The Washington Association of Building Officials is a nonprofit, professional association of state, 



   
 

 

15 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

county, city, and town officials in Washington State engaged in the development, enforcement 
and administration of building construction codes and ordinances.  Members (both 
governmental and associate) are building officials and inspectors, plans examiners, architects, 
structural engineers, and others interested in providing safe buildings for our communities. The 
vision of the Association is for WABO to help lead Washington State to be known as the best 
place for citizens to live and businesses to thrive in a built environment that is safe and resilient.  

WABO was incorporated in 1977, and according to the Articles of Incorporation, for the purposes 
of: 
 

1. Development of uniform performance standards and requirements for construction and 
construction materials, consistent with nationally recognized standards of engineering, 
fire, health, and life safety throughout the state. 

2. To promote and conduct regional workshops and educational seminars on construction 
related codes, enforcement of said codes and all other areas of building and construction-
related codes. 

3. To review and act as advisor to the state legislature and the State Building Code Council 
on proposed changes to construction related codes. 

4. To assist and advise local building officials in the applicability of construction-related 
codes, including but not limited to, plans examination, departmental procedures, 
inspection programs and methods. 

 
Management of the Association is conducted by a Board of Directors and Officers of WABO 
working closely with the association’s management firm. In addition, a professional lobbyist is 
employed to keep the membership appraised of legislative activities, and technical consultants 
are employed as independent contractors to provide advice and services to the technical code 
development committee and the certification and registration programs. 
 
WABO provides a variety of services to its members and the public. Those services include a 
welder certification, special inspector certification, educational seminars, code official 
accreditation program, emergency responder network, a retail store selling code books, and 
quarterly business meetings for networking and training. In addition, the Association’s service 
menu includes providing a technical code development program; advisory services to the State 
Building Code Council and legislature; and outreach services bringing building officials, the public 
and building industry professionals together to promote safety in the built environment. 
 

Chapter 11: WABO’s Legislative Positions 

Why is WABO involved in politics? It may seem strange at first that WABO spends a significant 
amount of time and resources to influence legislation; however, if WABO chooses to not get 
involved then no one is there to offer a Building Officials perspective on proposed legislation. 
Below are a few legislative positions that WABO has and examples of how WABO has used that 
position to determine if WABO will support, seek to modify or oppose proposed legislation. 



   
 

 

16 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

• Protect Local Authority: WABO supports protecting local authority to amend, adopt and 
administer construction codes. 
 

SSB 5380, Building permit approval, was submitted in the 2021 Legislative cycle. The bill sought 
to require a building department to automatically approve a permit upon three submittals or 
three requests for additional information. With WABO’s position being that local authorities 
should have the ability to administer construction codes as they deem appropriate for their 
communities WABO opposed the bill and the bill never made it out of committee.  
 

• Unfunded Mandates: WABO recognizes that jurisdictions have limited fiscal capacity 
and opposes unfunded and under-funded mandates. 
 

SB 5280, Concerning smoke detection devices, was submitted in the 2019 legislative cycle. The 
bill’s intent was to make sure every home sold in Washington had at least one smoke detector. 
While WABO did not disagree with the importance of having smoke detectors in a home, the 
bill had placed the responsibility of who verifies the smoke detector on the local Fire 
Department / Fire District. This resulted in an unfunded mandate. WABO worked with the Bill 
sponsor to see the bill amended to place the sole responsibility on the seller of the home to 
provide the smoke detector.  
 

• Funding for State Building Code Council: The Washington State Building Code Council 
(SBCC) is mandated by state law to develop the construction codes used in Washington 
and that effort requires adequate funding to accomplish their mission.  WABO supports 
continued adequate funding for the SBCC and clarification for consistent fee application 
by local jurisdictions. 
 

HB 1622, modifying the fees for the State Building Code Council, was submitted in the 2018 
legislative cycle. With the State Building Code Council being funded through fees collected at 
the time of permit issuance the SBCC hadn’t seen an increase since 1989. WABO supported this 
increase to see the SBCC successful in their mission to adopt and maintain the codes.  
 
These are just a few examples of the importance of WABO to be involved in the legislative 
process. WABO will continue to provide a voice for the building officials across the State of 
Washington and serve as a vehicle to educate law makers on the impacts of their choices on the 
local building departments across the state.  
  



   
 

 

17 WHAT IS A BUILDING OFFICIAL? 

 
 

 





 

 
Everyone deserves to live and work in safe structures. Do your part by finding a rewarding career in protecting the public 
as a building code administrator. Enroll in this three-year completely online program to fill a continuing demand for 
qualified: 

• Permit Technicians • Building Inspectors • Plans Examiners 
 

The WABO Code Official Accreditation Program (COAP) is designed to provide in-depth training tailored to prepare 
individuals for positions within Washington State building departments. This three-year completely online program 
awards a Certificate upon satisfactory completion of each year (three quarters per year) for a total of three certificates. 
By completing an International Code Council Certification for each certificate awarded, individuals have the option of 
gaining Accreditation through the Washington Association of Building Officials (WABO), up to a total of three 
accreditations. 
 

Year 1:  Working Knowledge of City and County Permit Centers – Permit Technician 

• Administrative and legal aspects of working in the regulatory side of the construction industry 

• Customer service and communication basics at a public service center 

• Basic understanding of construction codes 

• Optional ICC Certificates Required to Achieve WABO Accreditation (Pick 1) – Permit Technician, Residential or 
Commercial Building Inspector, Residential or Building Plans Examiner 

Year 2:  Field Application of Construction Codes – Building Inspector 

• Inspecting development at construction sites 

• Communication techniques with builders & contractors 

• Report writing and properly documenting permit records 

• Inspector-level knowledge of construction codes 

• Optional ICC Certificates Required to Achieve WABO Accreditation (Pick 2 Additional) – Residential or 
Commercial Building Inspector, Residential or Building Plans Examiner 

Year 3:  Construction Code Reviews of Permit Applications – Plans Examiner 

• Multi-discipline permitting, process and procedures 

• Technical writing and presentation development 

• Understanding the interaction of plans examiners and permit applicants 

• Optional ICC Certificates Required to Achieve WABO Accreditation (Pick 2 Additional) – Residential or 
Commercial Building Inspector, Residential or Building or Mechanical or Plumbing Plans Examiner, Residential 
or Commercial Mechanical Inspector, Residential or Commercial Plumbing Inspector 

 

Class Size is Limited – Open Enrollment Begins April 11, 2022 
Fall Courses Begin September 12, 2022 

Questions? Call Melissa (360) 628-8669 or email coap@wabo.org 





Join Us
At  Visconti's Italian Restaurant 



This presentation aims to discuss 
common technologies that are being utilized 

for building inspections.  
Course Objectives: 
1. Provide brief demo of the tech that is being used for building inspection/code 
     enforcement; remote video inspections, 3rd party applications, drones inspections, 
     iPads, and Real Wear heads-up wearable video.     iPads, and Real Wear heads-up wearable video.
2. Explain the systems that are currently being utilized and how they integrate in our 
     review and inspection programs/apps.  
3. Provide live demonstration of drone inspection. 
4. Q&A  

Professional 
Development

Spring 2022

ICC Preferred Provider Course #31247 (.3 CEU)


	01  Agenda Leavenworth - Spring 2022
	02  MINUTES January 27 2022
	03 Attendee List - Spring 2022
	04  Relocations, Recognitions, & Memorials
	05  Sponsor Thank You (APR 2022)
	06  Schedule of Events
	07  Advanced Notice ABM 2022
	08  ACO's  (APR 2022)
	09 WABO 3rd Quarter Financials
	Budget Comparison 033122
	P & L Summary 033122

	10 Leadership Nomination Form
	11  Award Nomination Form
	12  Building Official Handbook - 04_18_22
	13  Building Safety Month
	14  COAP Flyer 2022
	15  Mini Golf & Social Event Flyer
	01 7th Annual Mini Golf Tournament Flyer
	02 Visconti's Italian Restaurant Flyer

	16  Professional Development Drones

	Title: 
	Title2: 
	CityStateZip: 
	Phone: 
	FAX: 
	EMail: 
	President: Off
	First VP: Off
	Second VP: Off
	TC: Off
	EI: Off
	CR: Off
	OS: Off
	F: Off
	GR: Off
	EM: Off
	A: Off
	Title Date: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Name: 
	Jurisdiction: 
	Chapter: 
	Company: 
	Address: 
	Contact Person: 
	Contact Person Phone: 
	Name_2: 
	Address_2: 
	Phone 2: 
	Phone Email: 
	Description of Accomplishments: 


